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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Good morning.

          3  Welcome to the Land Use Subcommittee on Landmarks,

          4  Public Siting and Maritime Uses.  I am Jessica

          5  Lappin, the Chair.

          6                 We are joined today by committee

          7  members, Council Member Jimmy Oddo from Staten

          8  Island, Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo from

          9  the Bronx, Council Member Miguel Martinez from

         10  Manhattan, and Council Member Charles Barron from

         11  Brooklyn.

         12                 The first item on the agenda for

         13  today is the Astoria Park Pool and Play Center.

         14  This is located within Peter Vallone, Jr's.

         15  District, and I understand he is supportive of this

         16  designated.  It is in Queens Community Board 1, Item

         17  Number 20065576, and if Diane Jackier from the

         18  Landmarks Commission could come and testify on this

         19  item that would be great, thanks.

         20                 MS. JACKIER:   Good morning council

         21  members.

         22                 My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         23  External Affairs at the Landmarks Preservation

         24  Commission.

         25                 I am here today to testify on the
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          2  Commission's designation of the Astoria Park Pool

          3  and Play Center in Queens.

          4                 On April 18th, 2006, the Landmarks

          5  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          6  designation.  Three people spoke in favor, including

          7  Parks' Commissioner Adrian Benepe, and

          8  representatives of the Historic Districts Council,

          9  and the Art Deco Society.  There were no speakers in

         10  opposition.  The site was previously heard on April

         11  13th, July 10th, and September 11th, 1990.

         12                 On June 20th, 2006, the Commission

         13  voted to designate the site a New York City

         14  Landmark.

         15                 The Astoria Play Center is one of a

         16  group of eleven outdoor swimming pools which were

         17  opened in the summer of 1936 in a series of grand

         18  ceremonies presided over by Mayor Fiorello

         19  LaGruardia and Parks Commissioner, Robert Moses.

         20  All were constructed largely with funding provided

         21  by the Works Progress Administration, one of the

         22  many New Deal agencies created during the 1930's to

         23  address the effects of America's Great Depression.

         24  Designed to accommodate a total of 49,000 users

         25  simultaneously, at locations scattered around the
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          2  entire city, and completed just two and a half years

          3  after the LaGuardia Administration took office, the

          4  new pool complexes gained quick recognition as being

          5  among the most remarkable public recreation

          6  facilities ever constructed in this country.

          7                 Many architects, landscape

          8  architects, and engineers were hired to execute the

          9  pool program, and the hundreds of other new

         10  construction and rehabilitation projects undertaken

         11  between 1934 and 1936 by a newly consolidated Parks

         12  Department.  They were guided by a senior team

         13  composed of staff members and consultants who had

         14  earlier worked for Moses at various governmental

         15  agencies, including the New York State Council of

         16  Parks and the Long Island State Park Commission.

         17  They included architect Aymar Embury II, landscape

         18  architects Gilmore D. Clarke and Allyn R. Jennings,

         19  and civil engineers W. Earle Andrews and Qilliam H.

         20  Latham.  Surviving documents also indicate the

         21  Robert Moses, a long- time swimming enthusiast, gave

         22  detailed attention to the designs for the new pool

         23  complexes.

         24                 Opened on July 2nd, 1936, with a

         25  capacity of 6,200 swimmers, and designed mainly by
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          2  consulting Parks Department architect John Matthews

          3  Hatton, the Astoria Plan Center commands a striking

          4  waterfront location in Astoria Park.  The vast scale

          5  of the pool complex is complemented by that of its

          6  setting, the distant vistas westward framed by the

          7  monumental forms of the Hell Gate and Triborough

          8  Bridges.  Extensive concrete bleachers are located

          9  on the western side of the bathhouse and around the

         10  diving pool, with greater outdoor seating than any

         11  other play center in the City, the Astoria Play

         12  Center accommodated the final trails for the 1936

         13  Summer Olympics.

         14                 Like Hatton's later design for the

         15  1939 bathhouse at Betsy Head, the Astoria Play

         16  Center structure makes extensive us of glass block.

         17  Among the center's more unusual design elements are

         18  the whimsical saucer- like roofs atop the upper

         19  portions of the filter house structure, and the

         20  areas adjacent to the pool complex include extensive

         21  pathway systems, playing areas, and a striking

         22  comfort station designed in a style similar to that

         23  of the bathhouse.

         24                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         25  the designation of the Astoria Park Pool and Play
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          2  Center.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  This is

          4  currently used a park, as a pool within the park,

          5  which is I think 60 acres?  It is a large park in

          6  Astoria.

          7                 MS. JACKIER:  There is someone from

          8  the Parks Department who is actually here, who could

          9  probably better answer those questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And the Parks

         11  Department, as you mentioned, is supportive of this

         12  designation.

         13                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes, they have been

         14  terrific supporters of Landmarks, and terrific

         15  stewards of their important structures.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Do any of my

         17  colleagues have questions?

         18                 There is also, thank you, Diane,

         19  Roger Lang is here from the Landmarks Conservancy to

         20  speak in favor of, I think, all of the items on the

         21  agenda.

         22                 So, is that correct?

         23                 MR. LANG:  Inaudible.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Okay, then we

         25  will wait for that.
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          2                 Seeing nobody else here to testify,

          3  did the Parks Department like to testify?

          4                 Okay, can you when you are done just

          5  fill out one of these slips with the Sergeants?

          6                 Okay, are you John Krawchuk?

          7                 MR. KRAWCHUK:  I am John Krawchuk,

          8  yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Okay, please.

         10                 MR. KRAWCHUK:  Okay, thank you.

         11                 Good morning Chairwoman Lappin, and

         12  members of the Committee.

         13                 On behalf of Mayor Bloomberg, Deputy

         14  Mayor Harris, and Commissioner Benepe, my name is

         15  John Krawchuk, and I am the Director of Historic

         16  Preservation for the New York City Parks Department.

         17                 I am speaking today in support of the

         18  Landmarks designations of Astoria Pool in Queens,

         19  and the Orchard Beach Bathhouse in the Bronx that

         20  are before you today for discussion.

         21                 The WPA era, or Works Progress

         22  Administration, buildings and landscapes are an

         23  extraordinary inheritance.  The Moses era parks

         24  designers, including Aymar Embury and Gilmore Clarke

         25  used basic materials:  Brick, cast concrete and
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          2  steel to create fantastic, dramatic public

          3  structures, many of which survived to the present

          4  day.  We refer to this era as the Golden Age of Park

          5  Design of the 20th Century.

          6                 With nearly $1.4 billion of park

          7  investment anticipated over the next four years, we

          8  are in the midst of another great era of park

          9  design.  Hundreds of millions of dollars are being

         10  invested in new parks such as Freshkills and the

         11  Highline, and the waterfront development projects

         12  that are taking place in each of the five boroughs.

         13  But as we invest in new parks, it is essential that

         14  we preserve the best examples of the preceding

         15  generations of park design.

         16                 We have worked closely in partnership

         17  with the Landmarks Preservation Commission to

         18  prepare the designation reports for these popular

         19  and essential park facilities to ensure that their

         20  unique character is preserved for future

         21  generations.

         22                 Astoria Pool is perhaps the best and

         23  most intact example of the ten enormous pools that

         24  were opened one per week in 1936, an astounding

         25  accomplishment even by today's standards. Fortune
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          2  magazine called it "the swimming pool year" in an

          3  article on Moses.  Astoria hosts hundreds of

          4  thousands of users each summer, making it perhaps

          5  the largest and most heavily used of the Parks' 35

          6  outdoor pools.

          7                 Today, I am sorry to say that Astoria

          8  has lost a bit of the glamour of the heyday of the

          9  1940's.  Signature elements such as the sculpted

         10  diving nymphs have disappeared from its facade.

         11  Parks has spent approximately $2.5 million since

         12  1994, on incremental repairs over many years, but we

         13  seek to begin a top to bottom preservation

         14  assessment to slowly ensure the restoration of this

         15  facility to its former glory.

         16                 As for Orchard Beach, Robert Moses

         17  fondly named it "The Riviera of the Bronx," and it

         18  is one of his signature accomplishments.  Robert

         19  Caro wrote in the Power Broker, that Moses had a

         20  vision of creating a beach between two islands in

         21  the Bronx, a daunting task but one that Moses was

         22  determined to accomplish.

         23                 Moses' ambitious $8 million plan to

         24  renovate the area called for a parking lot, a

         25  bathhouse and most impressive, 115 new acres of
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          2  beach using over 3 million cubic yards of sanitation

          3  landfill and sand from the Rockaways in Queens, and

          4  Sandy Hook in New Jersey in which the sand was

          5  brought to the beach at a rate of 4,000 cubic yards

          6  per day.

          7                 Although the project was not fully

          8  complete until 1938, construction crews rushed in

          9  time to open the beach to the public in 1936.  Today

         10  Orchard Beach is extremely popular, attracting 1.6

         11  million visitors a year during the summer months,

         12  with average daily attendance of 16,000 people.

         13                 Orchard Beach, though not as intact

         14  as Astoria Pool, still retains the dramatic

         15  character of the Moses era. Since the early 1990's,

         16  Parks has invested over $18.7 million in the

         17  improvement of the beach and the surrounding

         18  landscape.  Over the next several years, Parks will

         19  continue to seek sympathetic, adaptive uses to bring

         20  to life and vitality the enormous bathhouse.

         21                 While many other Moses- era

         22  facilities in Parks are worthy of designation and

         23  protection, these two signature WPA- era facilities

         24  set a fine example of the quality of design and

         25  construction that made New York City parks famous.
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          2  It was during this era that the standard details of

          3  the New York City Parks became the essential

          4   "playbook" for urban parks across the country.

          5                 As we look back at 70 years of

          6  progress in New York City, we see the protection of

          7  these structures as an essential part of our

          8  stewardship of this vast and impressive park system.

          9                 I would be happy to answer any

         10  questions at this time.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  What are the

         13  number for users at the Astoria Park Pool?

         14                 MR. KRAWCHUK:  Current usage, it can

         15  accommodate up to 2,100 users per day, and I believe

         16  that the figures are about- would you like a

         17  seasonal usage for that?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I imagine it is

         19  more heavily utilized in the summer?

         20                 MR. KRAWCHUK:  It is.  The total for

         21  the season, which is basically Memorial Day to Labor

         22  Day, is 114,000 users, and it has a daily capacity

         23  of up to 2,100 users but it averages about 1,800 per

         24  day.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Great, okay.
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          2                 I do not have any other questions.

          3                 We have been joined by Council Member

          4  Rosie Mendez of Manhattan, and Council Member Leroy

          5  Comrie of Queens, great.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 MS. KRAWCHUK:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Seeing nobody

          9  else here to testify on this item, the hearing is

         10  closed.

         11                 Since you spoke in your testimony,

         12  Mr. Krawchuk, about the Orchard Beach bathhouse, why

         13  do not we move to that item next?

         14                 It is in the Bronx in Council Member

         15  Vacca's district, Item Number 20065579. I know that

         16  this is an item that Community Board 10 approved

         17  when Council Member Vacca was the District Manager

         18  there, and he is very supportive, having worked on

         19  it at the community board level before being a

         20  council member.

         21                 Diane Jackier, would you like to

         22  testify?

         23                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning again,

         24  council members.

         25                 Diane Jackier from the Landmarks
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          2  Commission.

          3                 On April 18th, 2006, the Landmarks

          4  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          5  designation of the Orchard Beach Bathhouse and

          6  Promenade in the Bronx.  Three people spoke in

          7  favor, including Parks Commissioner Adrian Benepe

          8  and representative of the Historic Districts

          9  Council, and the Art Deco Society.

         10                 There were no speakers in opposition.

         11                 The site was previously heard on June

         12  2nd, 1992.

         13                 On June 20th, 2006, the Commission

         14  voted to designate the site a New York City

         15  landmark.

         16                 The Orchard Beach Bathhouse and

         17  Promenade, which since 1936 has served as the major

         18  waterfront recreation complex for Bronx residents,

         19  is an outstanding example of the federally funded,

         20  public works projects executed during the Great

         21  Depression of the 1930's.  Located in Pelham Bay

         22  Park and fronting on Long Island Sound, Orchard

         23  Beach was constructed in 1934 to 1937 during the

         24  administration of Mayor Fiorello LaGuardia and Parks

         25  Commissioner Robert Moses with funds obtained
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          2  largely from the Works Progress Administration.

          3                 Planned on a massive scale, its

          4  construction required a major landfill, and a mile-

          5  long seawall to connect Hunter Island to the

          6  mainland, creating an entirely new artificial

          7  landscape.  Designed by a talented staff, supervised

          8  by the well known architect, Aymar Embury II, and

          9  the noted landscape architects Gilmore D. Clarke and

         10  Michael Rampawano (phonetic), the facility contains

         11  a bathhouse in a modern, classical style, and a wide

         12  promenade.  The concrete, brick and limestone

         13  bathhouse, embellished with tile and terrazzo

         14  finishes features two monumental colonnades that

         15  radiate outward from a raised, central terrace.  The

         16  crescent- shaped promenade which follows the curve

         17  of the beach, is paved with hexagonal blocks and

         18  edged by cast iron railings evoking a nautical

         19  motif.              Situated on the promenade are

         20  modern style concession and supply buildings, park

         21  benches, drinking fountains, and modernistic lamp

         22  posts.  The original and creative use made of these

         23  materials and forms, and the careful siting of the

         24  facility make it a distinguished, individual design.

         25                 Orchard Beach, a major accomplishment
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          2  of engineering and architecture and New York City's

          3  most ambitious project of the New Deal, is

          4  recognized as being one of the most remarkable

          5  public recreational facilities ever constructed in

          6  the United States.

          7                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          8  the designation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And as the Parks

         10  Department testified, they maintain this property

         11  and are supportive as well.

         12                 Do any of my colleagues have

         13  questions?

         14                 Great, thank you.  You can stay

         15  Diane.

         16                 This hearing is closed, and I know

         17  that Council Member Barron has to leave, so I would

         18  like to ask the council to allow him to vote.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I thank you

         20  very much, Madam Chair.

         21                 I would just like to vote`aye' on all

         22  of the calendar items for the Landmarks Committee.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

         25                 Let us now move on to the Long Island
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          2  Stone Company Building.  It is in Council Member

          3  Sara Gonzalez' district.  Item Number 20075001

          4  (sic), and she is supportive of this designation.

          5                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning council

          6  members.

          7                 Diane Jackier at the Landmarks

          8  Commission.

          9                 I am here testify in favor of the

         10  Commission's designation of the New York and Long

         11  Island Coignet Stone Company Building in Brooklyn.

         12                 On June 13th, 2006, the Landmarks

         13  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         14  designation.  Four people spoke in favor, including

         15  representatives of the Historic Districts Council,

         16  the Municipal Arts Society, and the Society for the

         17  Architecture of the City.

         18                 On June 27th, 2006, the Commission

         19  voted to designate the building a New York City

         20  landmark.

         21                 A pioneering example of concrete

         22  construction in the United States, the New York and

         23  Long Island Coignet Stone Company building is

         24  located at the southwest corner of 3rd Avenue and

         25  3rd Street, in the Gowanus section of Brooklyn.
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          2                 Designed by William Field and Son in

          3  1872, it was originally part of a five- acre factory

          4  complex that extended along the Gowanus Canal.  The

          5  building was conceived to showcase Beton- Coignet, a

          6  type of concrete that was patented in France by

          7  Francois Coignet during the 1850's, and produced at

          8  this location.  Using molds rather than chisels and

          9  cutting tools, pieces could be fabricated at a cost

         10  far lower than natural stone.  Though sections of

         11  the facade were refaced in the 1960's, two distinct

         12  types of cast stone remain visible; pre- cast

         13  details and blocks on the upper stories, and a

         14  monolithic, poured- in place foundation.

         15                 Despite many prestigious commission's

         16  in the metropolitan area, most notably the arches

         17  and clear- story windows of St. Patrick's Cathedral,

         18  the stone work struggled and was soon reorganized as

         19  the New York Stone Contracting Company. In 1882, the

         20  factory closed and up until 1957, it housed the

         21  offices of Edwin Clark Litchfield's Brooklyn

         22  Improvement Company, which owned the site and played

         23  a central role in the borough's residential and

         24  industrial development.

         25                 The Commission urges you to affirm
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          2  the designation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Any questions?

          4                 Seeing nobody else here to testify on

          5  this item, this hearing is closed.

          6                 We can open the hearing on Fire

          7  Engine Company Number 258, Hook and Ladder Company

          8  115.  This is in Council Member Gioia's district in

          9  Queens, Item Number 20065577.

         10                 MS. JACKIER:  Diane Jackier again,

         11  Landmarks Commission.

         12                 I am here to testify in favor of the

         13  Commission's designation of Fire Engine Company

         14  Number 258 in Queens.

         15                 On May 16th, 2006, the Landmarks

         16  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         17  designation.  Three people spoke in favor, including

         18  representatives of the Historic Districts Council,

         19  the Municipal Arts Society, and the Society for the

         20  Architecture of the City.

         21                 The Commission previously held a

         22  public hearing on the building on April 24th, 2001.

         23                 On June 20th, 2006, the Commission

         24  voted to designate the building a New York City

         25  landmark.
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          2                 Built in 1902 to 1904, Fire Engine

          3  Company Number 258- Hook and Ladder Company Number

          4  115, is located on 47th Avenue, in the Hunters Point

          5  section of Long Island City. Designed by Bradford

          6  Lee Gilbert, the Dutch renaissance revival- style

          7  structure was erected as part of an ambitious

          8  campaign to expand fire protection in Queens, and

          9  improve working conditions for Queens firefighters.

         10                 Gilbert was an extremely prolific

         11  architect, designing branches of the YMCA in New

         12  York City, and he was probably best known for

         13  building the City's first skyscraper, The Tower

         14  Building, in 1897 to 1898.  Engine Company Number

         15  258 is topped by a monumental step gable, a feature

         16  often associated with early 17th Century

         17  architecture in Holland.  Four and a half stories

         18  tall, and more than 50 feet wide, the imposing

         19  facade has Flemish bond brick with burnt headers,

         20  projecting metal window bays, and over- sided

         21  masonry details.  Built to house two companies with

         22  the long tradition of public service, Engine Company

         23  Number 258 is an outstanding example of early 20th

         24  Century civic architecture, and one of the finest

         25  fire houses in New York City.
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          2                 Beginning in 1999, the fire house was

          3  used as the location for the popular television

          4  drama, Third Watch.  Recent renovations have

          5  modified the window frames but the buildings'

          6  overall original character remains in tact.

          7                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          8  the designation.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  This is one of

         10  the first communities in Queens that moved from

         11  having a volunteer fire fighting force to actually

         12  having--?

         13                 MS. JACKIER:  Organized, right, after

         14  the consolidation in 1998.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Do any of my

         16  colleagues have questions?

         17                 Okay, the hearing on this item is

         18  closed, and we can move on to the last item on the

         19  agenda, which is P.S. 64 in Council Member Mendez'

         20  district, Item Number 20065578, and Ms. Jackier, why

         21  do not you testify on this item, and then Council

         22  Member Mendez, if you would like to make a statement

         23  afterwards, that would be welcomed.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I would

         25  welcome everyone to testify, and I could speak after

                                                            22

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  everybody.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you.

          5                 MS. JACKIER:  On May 16th, 2006, the

          6  Landmarks Commission held a public hearing on the

          7  proposed designation of Public School 64 in

          8  Manhattan.

          9                 The hearing was continued on June

         10  6th, 2006. Forty- eight people spoke in favor of

         11  designation, including City Council Member Rosie

         12  Mendez, and representatives of City Council Speaker

         13  Christine Quinn, State Assembly Member Syvia

         14  Freidman, Manhattan Borough President Scott

         15  Stringer, Comptroller William C. Thompson, Jr.,

         16  Congresswoman Nydia Velazquez, State Assembly Member

         17  Deborah Glick, State Senator Martin Connor,

         18  Community Board 3 in Manhattan, The East Village

         19  Community Coalition, Place Matters, Lower Eastside

         20  Tenement Museum, Society for the Architecture of the

         21  City, the Greenwich Village Society for Historic

         22  Preservation, the Landmarks Conservancy, the

         23  Municipal Arts Society, and the Historic Districts

         24  Council.

         25                 Six people spoke in opposition to
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          2  designation, including three representatives of the

          3  owner, and a representative of REBNY.  The

          4  commission also received several hundred letters,

          5  petitions, and post cards in support of designation.

          6                 On June 20th, 2006, the Commission

          7  voted to designate the building a New York City

          8  landmark.

          9                 Designed by noted New York City

         10  school architect, Charles B.J. Snyder and completed

         11  in 1906, the five- story, French- renaissance

         12  revival- style structure at 605 East 9th Street

         13  served as a learning center for generations of

         14  immigrant children and adults in the Tompkins Square

         15  neighborhood.

         16                 Snyder was the Board of Education

         17  superintendent of school buildings from 1891 to

         18  1923, a period of unprecedented expansion and

         19  construction of new schools, in addition to New York

         20  City.  During this time, Snyder planned, designed

         21  and built approximately 170 distinguished structures

         22  that reflected the City's commitment to public

         23  education.  Although Snyder embraced a variety of

         24  architectural styles that were sometimes repeated in

         25  different locations, his design at P.S. 64 was like
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          2  any of his others.  The building features a slate-

          3  covered, Mansard roof, terra cotta moldings and

          4  keystones, contrasting brick and stone materials,

          5  and pediments that are filled with fruit and

          6  foliage. The innovative H- plan design provided

          7  ample light and air, and the auditorium offered the

          8  neighborhoods immigrants a generous public space for

          9  evening lectures and educational programs that

         10  helped them assimilate into their new country.

         11                 In addition, prominent elected

         12  leaders, such as Governor Alfred Smith, Mayor Jimmie

         13  Walker, and Franklin Delano Roosevelt delivered

         14  political stump speeches in the assembly hall.

         15                 P.S. 64 was also an incubator of

         16  educational innovation and experimentation.  Little

         17  Red School House founder, Elisabeth Irwin taught

         18  there from 1912 to 1921, and created a

         19  classification system that was based on I.Q. Test

         20  scores.  The school's second principle, William E.

         21  Grady, was a supporter of the Etinger Plan

         22  (phonetic), which made vocational training available

         23  to seventh and eight graders.

         24                 The school's alumni includes Wizard

         25  of Oz lyricist, Yip Harburg, and Joe Mankiewicz,
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          2  director of All About Eve, Cleopatra, Guys and

          3  Dolls, and No Way Out.

          4                 The school was closed in the mid-

          5  1970's by the Board of Education, and was

          6  subsequently used as a cultural center for 20 years

          7  by a local community group, Charas/El Bohio, until

          8  the City sold the building at auction in 1998.

          9                 The Commission strongly urges you to

         10  affirm the designation of P.S. 64.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you, and I

         12  have a letter here from counsel to the owner who

         13  opposes the designation, and they contend that the

         14  property does not have any special character or

         15  special historical or aesthetic interest or value.

         16                 What would the Commission's response

         17  to that be?              MS. JACKIER:  Because there

         18  was a confidentiality agreement regarding this,

         19  there is a lawsuit that is going on, I am not

         20  authorized to comment on anything on that, but the

         21  Commission feels very strongly this is a New York

         22  City landmark. It was unanimously voted and

         23  designated on June 20th because the designation

         24  report is probably the best expression of how the

         25  Commission--.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  But you can

          3  discuss the items that are in the designation

          4  report?

          5                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And so, what I

          7  am saying is that their contention is that this

          8  building has no real historical or architectural

          9  merit, and obviously the Commission voted

         10  unanimously that it does.

         11                 So, I just wanted to ask you to

         12  explain more fully what elements in the designation

         13  report you think are particularly important that

         14  refute that argument.

         15                 MS. JACKIER:  I think from my

         16  testimony that I just gave, the Commission feels it

         17  has architectural, cultural, and historic

         18  significance.

         19                 This is something, I mean, the design

         20  itself is something unique that CBJ Snyder did for

         21  P.S. 64.  He did so many school buildings across New

         22  York City, and he did incorporate a lot of the same

         23  elements into some of those buildings.  This is

         24  specifically unique, the French- renaissance style,

         25  the different decorations that he used, that was
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          2  something that was really important to this

          3  building.  Also, this is an H- plan school, this is

          4  something that also had an auditorium that led

          5  directly from the street into the auditorium.  It

          6  was something that was felt to be welcoming to the

          7  neighbors.  There were a lot of new immigrants who

          8  were coming into the City, and this was really the

          9  center for them to come and learn about American

         10  culture.  There were a lot of lectures given there,

         11  a lot of plays, different activities that went on

         12  there, so it was sort of the center of the

         13  community, and really acted as an anchor to this

         14  very special neighborhood.

         15                 Then, it also has extreme cultural

         16  significance because of Charas/El Bohio, there is

         17  many, many elements here that make this worthy of a

         18  New York City landmark.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  It has not been

         20  used as a school since--.

         21                 MS. JACKIER:  Since the mid- 70's.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Right, and it

         23  has been a community facility that has been

         24  treasured and heavily utilized by the surrounding

         25  neighborhood.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Okay, Council

          4  Member Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes, the City

          6  sold the building in`98, a different Administration

          7  from now until then, but if the City sold it in`98,

          8  why did not the City think about landmarking- the

          9  City obviously disposed of the building, if they

         10  cared so much about the building, why was not there

         11  discussion about landmarking this in`98?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  Again, I think this is

         13  something that is part of the ongoing lawsuit, so I

         14  am just here to talk about the merits of the

         15  building as a New York City landmark.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I mean, I do

         17  not think, do not get me wrong, I am not saying that

         18  by virtue of the fact that selling it, it means that

         19  it is not worth landmarking, but I just find it

         20  curious that the City was willing to part with it

         21  knowing it was going to a different entity that

         22  could do all kinds of things with it.

         23                 All right, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  And since the

         25  City sold it, it is my understanding that the
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          2  tenants were evicted, and this has been vacant since

          3  2001, is that correct?

          4                 Council Member Comrie.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

          6  Madam Chair.

          7                 When did the landmark process for

          8  this building start?

          9                 MS. JACKIER:  The building was

         10  calendared in October of`05, and then the Commission

         11  held a hearing--.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So, this is

         13  unusual from most of your other items that you have

         14  calendared from years. This is a recent, pretty

         15  recent, review and calendar.

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  The Commission

         17  calendared it in, right, 2005.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes,`05,

         19  right, okay, and this is well even after the

         20  building was sold and has been vacant for a period

         21  of time, and how come you did not explain- what is

         22  the nature of the lawsuit?

         23                 MS. JACKIER:  Unfortunately, it is

         24  not anything that I am authorized to comment on.

         25                 I think the Law Department would have
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          2  to answer any questions about the lawsuit.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  But how come

          4  that was not told to us in a report that there is a

          5  lawsuit regarding- what is the lawsuit regarding the

          6  designation, or is it a lawsuit against the City

          7  for- what is the lawsuit about?  Is it a lawsuit

          8  against the designation?  Is it a lawsuit because

          9  the private owner purchased the property from the

         10  City, with the idea that it was not going to be a

         11  landmark?

         12                 MS. JACKIER:  I again, I cannot

         13  comment on the specifics.  I do not think it is

         14  anything that the Commission would have included in

         15  its designation reports relating to the merits of

         16  the significance of the building.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  It is a

         18  little hard to make a decision not knowing what the

         19  context of the lawsuit was because if the landlord

         20  purchased the property from the City in auction

         21  in`98, he might have thought that he was getting it

         22  free and clear of any responsibilities like

         23  landmarking, and I do not want to be blindly voting

         24  on something that I do not know all the designation

         25  about.  Maybe the council member can give us a
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          2  little insight as to the history of the building.

          3  But, I am not really comfortable, Madam Chair, with

          4  no knowing what the constraints are or what the

          5  parameters of the lawsuit is saying that we should

          6  do one thing or the other.

          7                 At least I would like to have that

          8  information, because what if we are taking a stance

          9  against what they had been promised by a previous

         10  administration?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Council Member

         12  Comrie, I think the issue is that there is a

         13  confidentiality agreement that has been agreed to by

         14  Council Member Mendez, and the Landmarks Commission

         15  regarding the lawsuit and the owner, and so, they

         16  cannot comment or answer your questions about- I

         17  think Council Member Mendez is going to try to see

         18  what exactly she can say and cannot say on the

         19  record in response to your question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  The confusion

         21  is just getting deeper then.

         22                 I do not have a real problem with the

         23  question of landmarking, other than maybe they were

         24  promised at some point that it would not be

         25  landmarked, and are we overturning something that
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          2  they were promised, and that is the reason for the

          3  lawsuit. I do not know, maybe it could be that the

          4  lawsuit is just a landlords protection.

          5                 I would like to get some idea before

          6  we vote as a Body on this particular issue so, at

          7  least, we could articulate clearly one way or the

          8  other.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  The lawsuit is

         10  not going to be resolved before the Body would have

         11  to act on this item.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  No, no, I am

         13  not expecting a resolution but, at least, if we can

         14  know what the reason for the lawsuit is, if it is

         15  just a lawsuit to protect against designation,

         16  without any- if they do not have any history or any

         17  statements from the City that it would not be

         18  designated, then fine, I could vote clearly because

         19  then the landlord is clearly just self- protect the

         20  property from landmarking, and that is

         21  the different type of situation because, is there

         22  any particular use- is the building being used right

         23  now?  Or is it vacant?

         24                 MS. JACKIER:  It is vacant, it is

         25  vacant.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  It was a beloved

          3  community facility that was sold--.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I got the

          5  beloved community facility part.  I am clear on

          6  that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: -- under Mayor

          8  Giuliani, which you can piece together the

          9  different--.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I pieced all

         11  of that together, but you know.

         12                 I mean clearly, the Giuliani

         13  administration

         14  sold it out from under the will of the community,

         15  but clearly, there might have been some other

         16  promise that that administration made--.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  That is correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Since that,

         19  if you are going there, that administration probably

         20  made a promise to the landlord that was against the

         21  will of the community.

         22                 So, I would like to know that if that

         23  was a possibility so that, at least, we could be

         24  armed with that information so that we can take an

         25  informed vote.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I mean, we can

          3  see if we can find that out, but I would say that no

          4  promise like that can ever be made.

          5                 MS. JACKIER:  Has ever been made- I

          6  am very cautious in speaking but I know that the

          7  Landmarks Commission has not ever made that promise

          8  to anyone.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I did not

         10  think the Commission made that, but since you said

         11  it had not been calendared since 2005, it never came

         12  before the Commission until, at least, 2004.  So

         13  that tells me that unlike some of your other

         14  landmarks that you have been working on for 15 or 20

         15  years, this is a more recent landmarking, not that

         16  it should not have been considered 15 or 20 years

         17  ago, but the fact of the matter is that it was not

         18  on your calendar until, at least, 2004 so I just

         19  would like to have all of the information before I

         20  vote.

         21                 I would like to support the

         22  community, but I do not want to find out later that

         23  we did something, and then the lawsuit comes after

         24  the Council because we acted precipitously.

         25                 I am done Madam Chairwoman, unless
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          2  you want me to filibuster, but I think I am pretty

          3  clear on- you know, I would like to vote for it, but

          4  I would at least like to know that later on we do

          5  not come back to this issue.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Well, why do not

          7  we move to hear some testimony from the people who

          8  have signed up to speak on this item, and then we

          9  can continue the discussion. Kathleen Taylor,

         10  representing Borough President Scott Stringer, and

         11  then next we will hear from Roger Lang from the

         12  Landmarks Conservancy.

         13                 If you could just state you name for

         14  the record and begin, thanks.

         15                 MS. TAYLOR:  Good morning Chair

         16  Lappin, Committee members.

         17                 My name is Kathleen Taylor.  I am

         18  here to speak on behalf of the Manhattan Borough

         19  President, Scott Stringer.

         20                 I would like to thank you for holding

         21  today's hearing to consider designating P.S. 64,

         22  also known as Charas, as a New York City landmark.

         23                 Our office is in strong support of

         24  this designation of this building.  It has an

         25  architectural and historical significance for its
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          2  immediate neighborhood and for New York City as a

          3  whole.

          4                 We feel it is an integral part of the

          5  neighborhood's character, and must be preserved.

          6  P.S. 64 is at risk for demolition, and has already

          7  suffered inappropriate alterations, although we do

          8  understand that that may have stopped at this point.

          9                 By designating this building as a

         10  landmark, we can say as a city that this treasure

         11  should stand for future generations.  Even though

         12  the facade has been altered, we feel the buildings'

         13  significance has not changed, and its vital role in

         14  the City's history has not been diminished.

         15                 The recent efforts to damage the

         16  buildings' architectural integrity are an outrage

         17  and an affront to the local community, and to the

         18  City's public process.

         19                 Our office hopes to work with Council

         20  Member Rosie Mendez, as well as all the

         21  neighborhood's elected officials, and the East

         22  Village community, to ensure that the building will

         23  be preserved in a way that meets the community's

         24  needs.

         25                 In the meantime, the Council can make
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          2  a strong statement on behalf of community planning

          3  and historic preservation by giving final approval

          4  to landmarking of the P.S. 64 site.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

          6  much, and I just note that Comptroller Bill Thompson

          7  submitted testimony into the record in support of

          8  this item as well.

          9                 After Roger Lang, we will hear from

         10  Melissa Baldock, Michael Rosen and Marci Reaven.

         11                 MR. LANG:  Good morning Chairman

         12  Lappin and council members.

         13                 I am Roger Lang speaking on behalf of

         14  the New York Landmarks Conservancy.

         15                 The Conservancy urges you and your

         16  colleagues to sustain the designation of the five

         17  landmarks before you today.

         18                 Of all, perhaps, Public School 64 is

         19  the most controversial and as you mentioned,

         20  beloved.  Its fate is of vital concern for the East

         21  Village community, which has fought for decades to

         22  save this building from exploitation, and to put it

         23  to good use, serving the neighborhood.

         24                 Overall, the City's historic public

         25  schools are a treasured asset to be preserved and
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          2  restored so that they may serve future generations

          3  of students and teachers.  In that regard, they

          4  deserve as much respect and effort as our Carnegie

          5  libraries, courthouses, police stations, and fire

          6  houses.

          7                 In particular, this is the work of a

          8  gifted school architect, Charles B. J. Snyder, and

          9  it is of evident landmark quality.  It is also

         10  intact, despite decades of neglect and the recent

         11  efforts of its current owner to deface its landmark

         12  features.   An expert engineer retained by The

         13  Landmarks Conservancy, Robert Silman Associates, has

         14  issued a technical report affirming the structural

         15  soundness of the school building.

         16                 Council members, if you do not

         17  sustain the designation of this landmark, Public

         18  School 64 may be doomed to be demolished or

         19  disfigured.  This should be an easy call. Please, do

         20  the right thing.

         21                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         22  present the Conservancy's views.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. LANG:  You are most welcome.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Next panel,
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          2  please.

          3                 To be followed by Simeon Bankoff from

          4  Historic Districts Council, Melissa Maldonado-

          5  Salcedo, and Alfredo Irizarry.

          6                 If you can each just state your name

          7  for the record, and then begin.

          8                 MS. BALDOCK:  Good afternoon, my name

          9  is Melissa Baldock, and I am speaking on behalf of

         10  the Greenwich Village Society for Historic

         11  Preservation.

         12                 GVSHP is a non- profit organization

         13  founded to preserve the architectural heritage and

         14  cultural history of Greenwich Village and the East

         15  Village.

         16                 CVSHP feels very strongly about the

         17  need to preserve this building because of its

         18  exceptional architectural, historic, cultural, and

         19  social significance.  I ask that you uphold the

         20  LPC's informed and expert decision to make P.S. 64 a

         21  New York City individual landmark so that this

         22  irreplaceable part of New York City's history is

         23  protected from destruction.

         24                 P.S. 64 was designed in 1904 by CBJ

         25  Snyder, Superintendent of School Buildings in New
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          2  York City for several decades and the architect for

          3  many landmark- worthy schools.

          4                 At P.S. 64, Snyder made use of his

          5  innovative H plan, which he had recently developed

          6  in order to maximize the amount of light and air

          7  that could penetrate the mid- block building, and he

          8  incorporated for the first time a ground- floor

          9  auditorium which enabled the school to be a center

         10  of learning for the entire community.  Of course,

         11  P.S. 64's era of historic and cultural significance

         12  is not limited to its early years.

         13                 Its later incarnation as the

         14  Charas/El Bohio Community Center reflects the time

         15  when the neighborhood's demographics changed and the

         16  city's investment in the area's infrastructure

         17  declined, leading to the rise of the homesteading

         18  movement, and the flowering of a vibrant downtown

         19  arts scene.

         20                 Indeed, P.S. 64 is emblematic of the

         21  changes in New York City and particularly, the Lower

         22  East Side throughout the 19th and 20th centuries,

         23  from the unprecedented immigration of the 19th

         24  century to the revolutionary reclamation by

         25  neighborhood residents and community groups of
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          2  vacant lots and abandoned buildings in the mid- to-

          3  late 20th century.  It is critical to save a

          4  building with such a rich history and to declare it

          5  an individual landmark.

          6                 The fate of this wonderful building's

          7  landmarking is now in your hands.  It is extremely

          8  important that you enthusiastically support the hard

          9  work of the LPC, Council Member Rosie Mendez, the

         10  East Village Community Coalition and the other

         11  residents and community groups who have worked for

         12  years to save this building.

         13                 If P.S. 64 were to be destroyed, its

         14  loss would be widely felt throughout the East

         15  Village, Lower East Side, and beyond.

         16                 Please do your part to protect this

         17  building by voting to support the designation.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 MS. REAVEN:  Good morning, my name is

         20  Marci Reaven.  I am Managing Director of CityLore,

         21  we are a cultural organization and I direct a

         22  project called Place Matters, we run a joint project

         23  with the Municipal Arts Society to draw attention to

         24  places of cultural and historical significance.

         25                 We strongly support the landmark
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          2  designation of P.S. 64/El Bohio building.

          3                 After being closed down by the City

          4  in 1977, the former school building was saved,

          5  repaired and brought back into productive use by

          6  local residents and their supporters.  Its

          7  preservation was one very visible product of a

          8  broad- based citizens preservation movement,

          9  fostered in this case by residents of the Lower East

         10  Side, but occurring as part of a citywide and

         11  actually a nationwide movement.

         12                 This movement applied self help

         13  strategies to the daunting task of saving inner

         14  city, largely minority neighborhoods from outright

         15  destruction during the 1970's and 80's, and era of

         16  widespread disinvestment, property abandonment and

         17  arson- for- profit.  One of the slogans of this

         18  movement that sums up its central message, was`do

         19  not move- improve'.

         20                 P.S. 64/El Bohio is more than a

         21  product of this community preservation movement.

         22  The community center established there, run by its

         23  principle tenant, Charas, continued to feed the

         24  movement on the Lower East Side.  It became the

         25  place to muster the creative, largely volunteer
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          2  energy of local residents and supporters for all

          3  kinds of community improvement. The city and federal

          4  government recognized this good work by providing

          5  restoration funds for the building and support for

          6  its many programs.

          7                 The landmark designation of this

          8  important building secures a tangible marker of our

          9  history, and it recognizes that the building is an

         10  important piece of the collective memory for many

         11  New Yorkers.  Its continuing presence means that the

         12  past it embodies can be better remembered by the

         13  people who were there, and better taught to the

         14  people who were not there.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you, and

         17  just briefly, when this, and I know Council Member

         18  Mendez had discussed this with me earlier, but in

         19  the 70's when there was  a great deal of flight from

         20  this community, this was a place that people really

         21  rallied around, and worked hard to protect and

         22  became a symbol of saving the neighborhood.

         23                 MS. REAVEN:  I made a film there in

         24  the mid- 1970's and actually witnessed the birth of

         25  this movement, and the occupation and use of the
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          2  building, so it has been in use, and really

          3  cherished from the very beginning.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you,

          5  please.

          6                 MR. ROSEN:  My name is Michael Rosen.

          7    I am with the East Village Community Coalition,

          8  and I have read the lawsuit actually, it is publicly

          9  available.  You can get it from Park Counsel's

         10  Office.  I am not a lawyer.  I saw no

         11  representations in there from the plaintiff against

         12  the City, that there were any promises made in terms

         13  of the previous administration.  I read it

         14  thoroughly, and there are other accusations in there

         15  but nothing like that.

         16                 The person from the Landmarks

         17  Preservation Commission said that they received

         18  hundreds of letters.  In fact, there were tens of

         19  thousands, and multiple tens of thousands of

         20  letters, post cards.  I brought a bit of a show-

         21  and- tell of two years worth of post cards and

         22  rallies and posters that were taking place in the

         23  Lower East Side in support of designation of P.S.

         24  64.

         25                 More eloquent than me, I thought I
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          2  would just read two short pieces, one from Roberta

          3  Brandes Gratz and the other from Commissioner

          4  Christopher Moore from the Landmark Preservation

          5  Commission.

          6                 Commissioner Brandes Gratz said,

          7   "that the designation of P.S. 64 will be one of the

          8  most significant decisions of the Landmark

          9  Preservation Commission in recent years.  For the

         10  first time, the Commission will be recognizing a

         11  building, not only of enormous architectural merit

         12  but one of unique cultural significance that

         13  acknowledges and celebrates the contribution to the

         14  robust generation of our City made by community-

         15  based efforts.  P.S. 64 is not only a New York City

         16  landmark in the broadest and unique sense, it is a

         17  national landmark and the post- World War II

         18  struggle to save American cities.  With the

         19  preservation of P.S. 64, recognition of the

         20  importance of the grass roots and historic

         21  preservation movement come front and center.  It is

         22  long overdue."

         23                 I will quickly go through something

         24  that Christopher Moore said because it touches on

         25  what has been asked today.
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          2                 Yip Harburg, as people know, wrote

          3  the lyrics to the Wizard of Oz.  Commissioner Moore

          4  has said, "he was learning at P.S. 64 of a land that

          5  offered dreams, and where dreams really could come

          6  true."   Dreams that extended far beyond Yip's

          7  immigrant world or the world of the Lower East Side.

          8    He won an Academy Award for Over the Rainbow.

          9  Some years later, he wrote lyrics for another

         10  rainbow story, Finian's Rainbow, this show made it

         11  to Broadway, and to Hollywood.  Its theme was an end

         12  to racial bigotry in America, and equality for all

         13  Americans.

         14                 Yip wrote, Brother Can You Spare a

         15  Dime and April in Paris.  Who has written lyrics

         16  more profound and yet so beautiful as Yip Harburg?

         17                 Yip's music has long transcended his

         18  name, and this designation is in appreciation of

         19  both the architecture of P.S. 64, and its social and

         20  cultural history.

         21                 It is a no- brainer, and only Yip

         22  could give it a brain, or a heart, or a dream.  From

         23  Yip to Spike, Spike Lee, who showed student films

         24  there, let us have the brains and the hearts and the

         25  courage to do the right thing for P.S. 64.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

          3  much for your testimony.

          4                 The last panel, as I mentioned, one

          5  addition, Rob Hollander.

          6                 So Simeon Bankoff, Melissa Maldonado-

          7  Salcedo, Alfredo Irizarry and Rob Hollander, and

          8  that will be the final panel.

          9                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good afternoon council

         10  members.

         11                 I am Simeon Bankoff, Executive

         12  Director of the Historic Districts Council.

         13                 I am going to deviate from my

         14  prepared testimony, simply because I really cannot

         15  add anything more eloquent than Commissioner Gratz's

         16  and Commissioner Moore's remarks.  This was a

         17  remarkably courageous and powerful statement by the

         18  Landmarks Preservation Commission in the awareness,

         19  truly, of the architectural, cultural and historical

         20  significance of this building.  This is all- in-

         21  one.  This building is architecturally significant.

         22  It is important to the development of the City, and

         23  the development of our public education system

         24  through its innovative H- plan, as well as the terra

         25  cotta and the windows, the very formation of it.  It
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          2  is important to the social history of the area,

          3  everything from standing as the center for immigrant

          4  learning to later on becoming another kind of

          5  center, a community center, for an area that was

          6  undergoing bad times.

          7                 This building really is a miracle of

          8  preservation in the sense that a building can

          9  continue to serve its purpose as a community center,

         10  as an educational center, as a real landmark even

         11  when it goes through different owners.

         12                 We very much urge the Council to

         13  support this, and thank you very much.

         14                 MS. MALDONADO- SALCEDO:  Thank you

         15  for this opportunity to read my testimony.

         16                 Good morning, my name is Melissa

         17  Maldonado Salcedo.  I am an aid to Congresswoman

         18  Nydia Velazquez but I am her today as an individual

         19  who has a vested interest in the future of P.S. 64.

         20                 I am a product and resident of the

         21  Lower East Side.  I was born and raised, and

         22  continue to live in public housing, where I am now

         23  raising my own son, alongside my husband, across the

         24  street from my parents.

         25                 I was educated in my community.  My
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          2  neighborhood is my center of gravity.  The old P.S.

          3  64, former Charas Community Center Building at 605

          4  East 9th Street was designated as an individual

          5  landmark of the City of New York by the Landmark

          6  Commission based on historic, cultural and

          7  architectural merit. The Landmark Commission's vote

          8  was unanimous.  The Commission members delivered

          9  impassioned testimony which echoed my community

         10  sentiment, and celebrated what we deemed important

         11  and valuable. The expert and community testimony was

         12  awesome.  One of the commissioners stated that the

         13  community response was the most impressive she has

         14  ever witnessed.

         15                 Indeed, the Lower East Side poured

         16  its heart and soul to save P.S. 64.

         17                 This building designed by CBJ Snyder,

         18  served as a school for nearly 70 years.  Schools are

         19  the heart of a community, and bear the burden of a

         20  community's future prosperity.  Within a school,

         21  children learn, dream and become equipped with the

         22  tools that help build brighter and promising

         23  futures.

         24                 P.S. 64 later served as a community

         25  center for nearly 25 years.  A center we know as
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          2  Charas, and which incubated a movement, nurtured

          3  revolutionaries, defined and impacted the Lower East

          4  Side in many positive ways.

          5                 I want to highlight one of the many

          6  inspiring and timeless alumni of P.S. 64, Yip

          7  Harburg.  He wrote the lyrics of Wizard of Oz,

          8  Brother Can You Spare a Dime, Sometime (sic) in

          9  Paris, and years later, he wrote Finian's Rainbow, a

         10  Broadway show which later became a movie, and who's

         11  theme was acceptance. I cannot think of a better

         12  theme to situate P.S. 64.

         13                 I believe that the Lower East Side

         14  has been a door for a wave after wave of immigrant

         15  communities, and to the dream of this country.  I am

         16  proof of that.  P.S. 64 and the Charas Community

         17  Center has been a center to this door.  P.S. 64 as

         18  it stands, is the physical embodiment of the promise

         19  this country holds.

         20                 The preservation of this building as

         21  a landmark of the City of New York is crucial to our

         22  community and every resident of this city.

         23  Developers cannot continue defining communities,

         24  creating lines of demarkation that are drawn out to

         25  segregate, disempower, and which are void of
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          2  history.

          3                 We ask you here to vote to endorse

          4  the landmark designation of the historically

          5  distinguished, culturally unique, and

          6  architecturally bruised but heroic building.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. HOLLANDER:  Good morning, my name

          9  is Rob Hollander.  I have been a resident of the

         10  Lower East Side, East Village, on 11th Street

         11  between B and C, a block away from Charas/El Bohio,

         12  P.S. 64., since the 1970's.

         13                 I direct a group called the Lower

         14  East Side Residents for Responsible Development,

         15  which is a community network of concerned residents,

         16  long- time residents.  But I am here as a resident

         17  of the East Village.

         18                 One of the projects of the Lower East

         19  Side Residents for Responsible Development are

         20  guided, walking tours, historical, architectural

         21  walking tours of the East Village, and I actually

         22  guide these tours.  We end our tour on Avenue B, in

         23  front of St. Bridget's and P.S. 64, and I have to

         24  tell these tourists, whether they are from Nevada or

         25  Alabama, or from the borough of Queens about the
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          2  story of P.S. 64, designated a landmark and then

          3  defaced by a developer.  The response is always the

          4  same, they are shocked, appalled, and we actually

          5  have to go look at a community garden in order to

          6  raise their spirits before ending the guided tour.

          7                 I also them the story of how I

          8  encountered P.S. 64 for the first time, walking by

          9  the building, by Armando Perez, while he was still

         10  alive, stuck his head out the window, and said,

         11   "Come in, we have something for you.  We have a

         12  film series here, we have special events."  He came

         13  out and showed us some material, invited us in.  I

         14  have walked by YMCA's/YMHA's in the city, community

         15  facilities, and I have never been welcomed that way

         16  with such warmth and enthusiasm.  This is a treasure

         17  to the community.  It means something to the people

         18  who live there. There are really two considerations

         19  in this landmarking process, and one is the

         20  architectural value of the building itself.  It is

         21  an extraordinary splendid building of great grandeur

         22  and beauty.  There are only a handful of schools in

         23  the city that have these qualities of beauty and

         24  grandeur. This is one of them.

         25                 But also, there is the other
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          2  consideration of what would be there if is were not

          3  there, and that is an important consideration for

          4  our community.  We are seeing the Lower East Side

          5  change in its demographic radically.  This is a

          6  development that is truly alarming.  Since the Lower

          7  East Side and the East Village is really the most

          8  historical district in the City, if you take a look

          9  at Big Onion Tours, the most--.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I am sorry, Mr.

         11  Hollander, but I have to ask you to wrap up.

         12                 MR. HOLLANDER:  Have I passed my

         13  time?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Yes, please.

         15                 MR. HOLLANDER:  Three quarters of Big

         16  Onion Tours are conducted in the East Village/Lower

         17  East Side.  They have a tour of the Upper East Side.

         18    They have one tour of the Upper West Side, most of

         19  their tours are in the East Side.  This is a very

         20  historic area, and we need to preserve it.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Thank you for everyone who came here

         25  and testified on this item, and on the other items
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          2  on the agenda.

          3                 Council Member Mendez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you,

          5  Chairperson Lappin.

          6                 First I would like to apologize to my

          7  community since I was not here for most of their

          8  testimony, and to my colleagues.  I was outside

          9  trying to get clarification because the

         10  developer/owner does have a lawsuit against the

         11  City, and we have had some meetings about the future

         12  use of the building, and that is under a

         13  confidentiality agreement but I think I do have some

         14  clarification.  I want to speak a little bit about

         15  this building, and I hope I am not being

         16  duplicative.

         17                 I have to say when I moved, well

         18  actually before moving to the Lower East Side, we

         19  all knew of Charas/El Bohio. It was the cultural

         20  community center, the center of the Lower East Side

         21  embracing community issues, and allowing space for

         22  culture and arts and theater to flourish.

         23                 On the day of the Landmarks

         24  Preservation Commission hearing, many of my

         25  neighbors talked about when the school was first
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          2  open.  A lot of their older siblings went there, and

          3  this was the first school to an immigrant community

          4  that really changed their lives since everyone lived

          5  in closed box spaces, and this provided air and

          6  light, and it really made a tremendous difference in

          7  the education of the immigrant community in this

          8  district.  It has continued to do so.

          9                 During the 1970's, many of our school

         10  buildings closed down because there were many fires,

         11  many owners did not renovate the buildings.  They

         12  just took the insurance profits and left, and a lot

         13  of the families cannot return to our community,

         14  hence, we did not have the need for these school

         15  buildings because there were not the kids in the

         16  district.  During that time, there was a lot of drug

         17  dealing.  This particular building was taken over by

         18  drug dealers.

         19                 My friend, Armando Perez, who served

         20  with me as District Leader for several years, he was

         21  one of seven individuals who got the drug dealers

         22  out, and created a vibrant, cultural community

         23  center.

         24                 We created a recycle- a- bicycle

         25  program for the kids in the community.  We started
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          2  the garden movement in that building.

          3                 I, in 1995, went to my first meeting

          4  to talk about the preservation of public housing,

          5  which has then created some non- profit groups in my

          6  community.

          7                 We started the homesteading movement,

          8  a recycling movement during the early 80's.  Many of

          9  the things that have preserved our community were

         10  created in that building by community residents.  It

         11  was open almost 24 hours for community access, for

         12  not just theaters and arts and performances, but for

         13  people to learn about community issues.

         14                 Many important individuals, some

         15  known, some not so well known, some more well known,

         16  Luis Guzman, John Liguasamo (phonetic), Spike Lee,

         17  all walked through Charas/El Bohio.

         18                 The French Festival was held there

         19  for several years, and when the building was sold

         20  in`98, we had talked about, prior to the sale of the

         21  building, trying to landmark this building.  My

         22  predecessor and good friend, Margarita Lopez, who

         23  was not the council woman then, we talked about

         24  this.  There were so many issues going on but we did

         25  not have the tools, and we were working on several
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          2  issues simultaneously.

          3                 I think we have been successful in

          4  this effort now because it has become a more

          5  collective effort from different portions of the

          6  community who have come together because we realize

          7  our community is being torn apart, not just through

          8  the demolition of architectural treasures but

          9  through the change that we see in our community with

         10  proliferation of certain businesses and over

         11  development.

         12                 I need to speak about my friend

         13  Armando Perez because he is not here.  If the

         14  struggle to landmark, or the struggle to try to get

         15  this building back which he fought so hard for, may

         16  have been deterred because of his untimely death in

         17  1999.  He was murdered out in Queens, and for many

         18  years we were seeking justice and in 2004, we were

         19  able to have some kind of closure when his murderers

         20  finally went to jail.

         21                 Armando took over that building with

         22  his friends. He moved to the Lower East Side when he

         23  was two years old from Vieques, Puerto Rico, and

         24  everything he did in his life was about community

         25  empowerment and community preservation.  What we
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          2  could do, excuse me if I get a little emotional, for

          3  Armando's legacy, is to landmark this building.

          4                 He spent most of his wake hours

          5  there.  He loved, not just this community but the

          6  building and everything it represented.  His

          7  untimely death took a big part of us, a big chunk of

          8  us, and our efforts were also deviated with trying

          9  to ensure that his murderers did go to jail.  For

         10  many, many months no one was even charged in his

         11  murder, and I invite my colleagues here in the

         12  beginning of November where we are having a co-

         13  naming of the street in the same block as Charas/El

         14  Bohio because anyone who knew Charas, and knew

         15  Armando, knew that it was an open door policy, and

         16  it was about community love.

         17                 I will talk a little bit now about

         18  what I can talk about.  The lawsuit, the

         19  developer/owner started a lawsuit, I cannot

         20  remember, about the time that we had the hearing to

         21  landmark this building some months back, and one of

         22  his allegations is that my predecessor, Margarita

         23  Lopez, endorsed Mayor Mike Bloomberg for Mayor in

         24  the last election because he agreed to landmark the

         25  building as a favor for her.
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          2                 Besides that, being ludicrous, if

          3  anyone knows Mayor Mike Bloomberg, and if anyone

          4  knows my colleague, we all know that neither of them

          5  partake in quid pro quo.  I do not know, and I do

          6  not think any other agreements were made even with

          7  the previous Administration.

          8                 All I know is this building has

          9  always been a community facility use.  He bought the

         10  building with the deed restriction that it is

         11  community facility use, and he is tearing apart

         12  right now, because he has a Department of Buildings

         13  permit, at the terra cotta dormers, that is part of

         14  the architectural treasure of this building, and in

         15  some previous hearings by the Commission, where they

         16  talk about what merits landmarking, this building

         17  meets all those qualifications.  It was built in

         18  1904. It has architectural significance.  It has a

         19  historical significance.  Many political figures, it

         20  was mentioned that Governor Al Smith came there and

         21  made a speech.  More recently, I found out that

         22  maybe our future Governor, his father graduated from

         23  this public school, and Armando Perez, District

         24  Leader, then District Leader Rosie Mendez,

         25  Councilwoman Margarita Lopez, Congresswoman Nydia
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          2  Velazquez, then just the community activist,

          3  Christine Quinn, we all went to this community

          4  center to speak to individuals about important

          5  community issues.

          6                 I hope my colleagues will join me in

          7  voting and landmarking this building.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you

         10  Council Member Mendez.

         11                 That was very moving and passionate

         12  and I think, Mayor Walker and FDR also used the

         13  auditorium there to make speeches during campaigns.

         14                 With that, I would like the counsel

         15  to call the roll.

         16                 I recommend a favorable vote on P.S.

         17  64, and all the other items on the agenda.

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Inaudible.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  The hearing is

         20  closed.

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Inaudible.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I called your

         23  name twice.

         24                 If you would like to come and

         25  testify?
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          2                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:   If I could

          3  just say for the record that Mr. Irizarry is a

          4  member of my community, helped start lots of film

          5  programs there.

          6                 I think his testimony would probably

          7  echo and might add something to this testimony but

          8  if--.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  If you would

         10  like to speak briefly.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you,

         12  Chairperson Lappin.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  If you could

         14  just state your name for the record, please.

         15                 MR. IRIZARRY:  Good afternoon, thank

         16  you for the opportunity of speaking.

         17                 My name is Alfredo Irizarry, and I am

         18  also one of the members of Charas.  I believe that

         19  it is important that I, at least, make a statement.

         20                 I am a life long friend of Armando's

         21  also.  We all grew up together in the neighborhood.

         22  A building to us is the heart of Loisaida.  This is

         23  what we used to call it.  Loisaida is a word that

         24  was created by Bimbo Bitman Rivas (phonetic), who

         25  was a personal friend of Raul Julia, and we had a
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          2  theater at the downstairs auditorium.  It was called

          3  El Taotro an Bulante (phonetic), the Rolling

          4  Theater, that in 1978 was considered one of the most

          5  avantgarde theater groups in the City, Puerto Rican

          6  theater groups in the City.

          7                 I am also a Navy Vietnam veteran.

          8  Many of us, when we came back from Vietnam, we came

          9  back to our beloved neighborhood and saw the

         10  conditions of our neighborhood that

         11  was- I wish you guys could see the documentary that

         12  Marci Reaven worked on, that I am one of the people

         13  in that documentary, and the name of the documentary

         14  is called`El Corison the Loisaida' (phonetic), The

         15  Heart of Loisaida.  And this is what I represent,

         16  the heart of Loisaida.  So the building is not just

         17  a material structure.  It means much more than that.

         18                 We saved many buildings in the

         19  neighborhood, not just the school building.  We

         20  saved the Orpheum Theater.  We saved the Talmad

         21  University School that is on 8th Street.  We saved

         22  over 30 buildings on the Lower East Side.

         23                 So, this movement to me represents

         24  the heart of Loisaida because if we had not saved

         25  these buildings, if we had not organized and taken
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          2  this school over, then the neighborhood would not

          3  even resemble what it resembles today.

          4                 So, I just want to implore you that

          5  if there is any chance that you can see that

          6  documentary, which was aired on channel 13, El

          7  Corisan the Loisaida, you will see the condition of

          8  the neighborhood, and what we were able to turn

          9  around completely with all the politicians, Andrew

         10  Stein, Miriam Freidlander, I mean, on and on and on,

         11  people that saw the work that we were doing,

         12  preserving the neighborhood.

         13                 There is also a synagogue on 6th

         14  Street that the Hasidic community turned over to our

         15  organization, Charas, which is something that is

         16  unprecedented in the City of New York.  They do not

         17  do these things, and they turned this building over

         18  to us, a synagogue, that was closed.  They turned it

         19  over to us because they saw what we were doing,

         20  preserving the neighborhood, so, I thank you for the

         21  opportunity of speaking, and I hope you do the right

         22  thing.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 The hearing on this item is closed.

          3                 Counsel, please call the roll.

          4                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Chair

          5  Lappin.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Aye on all.

          7                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          8  Member Comrie.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         10                 I would just like to explain, I just

         11  wanted to be cautious, and from what I have heard,

         12  the lawsuit has no merit and any previous promise or

         13  anything that was made to the landlord.  I just

         14  wanted to be clear.

         15                 I still think that Landmarks should

         16  have mentioned it when they were making their

         17  presentation to us, so that we were fully informed.

         18  But I, as I said originally, I was in support of

         19  landmarking it, I just like to know all the

         20  information so that we are voting with all the

         21  information in front of us and not behind us.

         22                 Aye on all.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         24  Member Liu.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Permission to
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          2  speak on the motion?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Granted.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I want to thank

          5  you, Madam Chairperson, for holding this hearing,

          6  and I want to thank Council Member Mendez for all of

          7  the work that she has done out in the open, and at

          8  hearings like this, and also behind the scenes

          9  because a tremendous amount of work went into this.

         10                 Thank you and congratulations, and I

         11  vote aye.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         13  Member Martinez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  May I also

         15  explain my vote?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Sure.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you

         18  Madam Chair.

         19                 I just want to commend the community

         20  and the leadership, and the community both of

         21  previous Council Member Margarita Lopez, and

         22  currently Mendez, in ensuring the preservation of a

         23  community, and leaving a permanent finger print in

         24  that community from this point on, once this is

         25  landmarked, whatever happens in that community,
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          2  future generations will know that there is a history

          3  there, and what made this community such a great

          4  community as it is now.  There is a history behind

          5  it.

          6                 So, I want to commend you on that,

          7  and that is what we should be doing all over the

          8  City, leaving our permanent finger prints in our

          9  community, so I commend you for that Council Member

         10  Mendez, even before you moved in there, even before

         11  you were a council member, you were working on this.

         12

         13                 So, congratulations.

         14                 I vote aye on all of that.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         16  Member Arroyo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Yes.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

         19  Member Mendez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I vote aye on

         21  all, and I want to thank all my colleagues for being

         22  conscientious and asking all the questions that

         23  needed to be asked.

         24                 I want to thank you for restoring our

         25  history and our community.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  Council

          4  Member Oddo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Aye.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  By a vote

          7  of eight in the affirmative, none in the negative,

          8  and no abstentions, the aforementioned items are

          9  approved and referred to the Full Committee.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Congratulations,

         11  Rosie.

         12                 Meeting adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:33 p.m.)
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